Public Document Pack

>
R
% e/
Tt Vo ‘C}», >

3 s}

North East
Derbyshire

District Council

Scan this QR code

to see the meetings
streamed by the Council
5 J

Contact: Damon Stanton

Tel: 01246 217011
Email: damon.stanton@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk
Date: Thursday, 3 February 2022

To: Members of the Communities Scrutiny Committee

Please attend a meeting of the Communities Scrutiny Committee to be held on Friday, 11
February 2022 at 1.30 pm in the Council Chamber, District Council Offices, 2013 Mill
Lane, Wingerworth, Chesterfield S42 6NG.

Yours sincerely

~oval S@A‘@Qg

Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer

Members of the Committee

Conservative Group Labour Group Liberal Democrat Group
Councillor Lilian Deighton Councillor Joseph Birkin Councillor Pam Windley
Councillor Roger Hall Councillor Tony Lacey
Councillor Barry Lewis Councillor Jeff Lilley

Councillor Kevin Tait
Councillor Philip Wheelhouse

For further information about this meeting please contact: Damon Stanton 01246
217011

AGENDA

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Interest

Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable

Page 1


mailto:damon.stanton@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk

10

pecuniary interests and/or other interests, not already on their register of
interests, in any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the
appropriate time.

Minutes of Last Meeting (Pages 4 - 9)

To approve as a correct record and the Chair to sign the Minutes of the
Communities Scrutiny Committee held on 10 December 2021.

Scrutiny Review - Potential 'Out of Hours' Service

Interviews

1.30 pm — Heather Summers & Lucy Gebbie (Rykneld Homes Ltd)
2.00 pm — Julian Hawley (Planning Enforcement)

Previous Scrutiny Review (Pages 10 - 46)

To consider progress against the Action Plan — Scrutiny Review into Residential
Parking — from the Director of Growth & Economic Development.

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

To consider the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions. Please note, the most up-
to- date Forward Plan of Executive Decisions can be accessed via the following
link:-

https://democracy.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1137&RD=0&bcr=1

Scrutiny Work Programme (Pages 47 - 51)

To consider the Work Programme for the Communities Scrutiny Committee
2021/2022.

Additional Urgent Items (if any)

To consider any other matter which the Chair of the meeting is of the opinion
should be considered as a matter of urgency.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Communities Scrutiny Committee will be held on Friday,
1 April 2022 at 1.30 pm.

Venue for Next Meeting

To determine whether the next meeting be held formally (in person) at Mill Lane
or informally via virtual conference call.

Page 2


https://democracy.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1137&RD=0&bcr=1

We speak your language
Polish

Mowimy Twoim jezykiem
Romanian

% North East
Derbyshire

Urdu _ .

ox e b)) Sl a

Vorbim limba dumneavoastra

#. District Council
Chinese

>
RINSIRIRENIES
If you require this agenda in large print or another format
please call us on 01246 217753 Text No: 07800 00 24 25

If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate in or access the meeting
please contact the Governance Team at least 72 hours before the meeting starts.

Page 3



Agenda Iltem 3

COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY, 10 DECEMBER 2021

Present:

Councillor Kevin Tait (Chair) (in the Chair)
Councillor Barry Lewis (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Joseph Birkin Councillor Lilian Deighton
Councillor Tony Lacey Councillor Jeff Lilley
Councillor Philip Wheelhouse Councillor Pam Windley

Also Present:

C Cupit Deputy Leader of the Council

S Brunt Joint Head Of Service - Streetscene
M Finn Environmental Health Manager

D Stanton Governance Officer

A Bond Governance Officer

CSC/ Apologies for Absence
39/2
1-22  There were no apologies for absence received for this meeting.

CSC/ Declarations of Interest

40/2

1-22 Members were requested to declare the existence and nature of any
disclosable pecuniary interest and/or other interest, not already on their
register of interests, in any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting
at the appropriate time.

There were no Declarations of Interest.

CSC/ Minutes of Last Meeting

41/2

1-22 RESOLVED - That the Minutes of the Communities Scrutiny Committee
meeting held on 12 November 2021 were approved and signed as a correct
record by the Chair.

CSC/ Consideration of documentation

42/2

1-22 Members considered the responses that had been received from their
guestions regarding domestic bonfires and domestic smoke incidents.

Committee requested a full update on these figures, including clarification on
what items could and could not be burned, as well as an update on
restrictions that had been put in place as a result of the Pandemic.

RESOLVED - The documentation was noted.

1 Page 4



CSC/
43/2
1-22

Interviews

Members conducted a series of interviews with Heads of Service to ascertain
if there was a need for an out of hour’s service and how this might work
throughout the District.

Interview One with the Joint Head of Streetscene

(1) |Is there a need for an out of hour’s service?

The Joint Head of Streetscene informed Members that there was currently not
a great deal of demand for an out of hours service, and that there was a low
frequency of calls to deal with.

The Committee heard that arrangements were already in place for
emergencies such as flooding and drug paraphernalia where staff would be
paid overtime on an ad-hoc basis.

(2) How might an out of hours service work?

The Officer informed Members that how an out of hours service might function
would depend on what the service was designed to achieve and the subject
matter of the complaints.

(3) How would a service at NED compare with the CAN Rangers BDC?

Committee heard that this would depend on the demand placed on the service
and the availability of resources. The possibility of a north/south split across
the District was raised.

(4) What would be the costs of implementation?

The Officer informed Committee that this would depend on the volume of work
carried out by the service, the level of demand and the resources necessary
to complete the work.

(5) How would staffing provisions work?

The Officer stressed that this would depend on the required resource for the
potential service. Currently at Streetscene the service relied on the goodwill of
staff to be available for emergency callouts, and that there was a flexibility
clause in their contracts.

Members heard that there were no standby payment mechanisms in place as
this had been removed from the staff pay agreements in 2009.

(6) What would be the barriers to success?

The need for a local pay agreement due to the lack of a standby or callout
payment arrangement being in place. Also the costs and remits of the service.

2 Page 5



(7) If you was considering an out of hours service, what criteria would you
look at? How would you benchmark this with other authorities?

The Officer stated that this could be done by comparing with other Derbyshire
authorities such as Bolsover District Council.

Members noted that the Association of Public Excellence could be used to aid
with benchmarking.

(8) Have you any other opinions on a potential out of hours service?

The Officer questioned whether the District would want their own service, or to
work in partnership with another authority, or to utilise a service already in
place from an external provider.

Members discussed the interview at length and questioned what out of hours
service requests had been dealt with in the past and who decides how
urgently a situation would be dealt with.

The Officer informed Members that fallen trees that presented a risk to person
and property, drug paraphernalia and flooding had been urgently dealt with in
the past. He stated that either himself or the Joint Streetscence and Waste
Services Manager were contactable at all times and would make a decision
about whether to intervene at that time or the next day.

Members enquired as to how many call outs for the service had been out of
hours and heard that in the previous three months there had not been any.
Members also heard that although the service operated largely on an informal
basis, they were able to manage the number of issues well.

Interview Two with the Service Manager for Environmental Health

(1) Is there a need for an out of hour’s service?

Committee heard that the need for an out of hours service would depend on
what the Council wanted to achieve and the nature of the service itself. There
was not a great need for an out of hours service to deal with issues such as
noise nuisance or fly tipping as there was generally a low frequency of calls
and that this was working well within the current system.

But an out of hours service to handle anti-social behaviour across towns
within the District that had a community focus may be of some benefit.

(2) How might an out of hours service work?

The Officer suggested that a neighbourhood warden approach focussed on
major towns within the District could work. This service could deal with anti-
social behaviour and would work well under a 10 hour shift bases of four days
working and four days non-working.

He also suggested that Environmental Health could be a successful out of
hours service used to observe and witness at the time of complaint.

3 Page 6



(3) How would a service at NED compare with the CAN Rangers BDC?

It was suggested that a potential service offered by NED would differ from the
CAN Rangers at BDC as it would have a much more limited and targeted
focus.

(4) What would be the costs of implementation?

The Officer estimated that an out of hours service based around anti-social
behaviour would have a minimum cost of £250,000 per annum.

An Environmental Health out of hours service would have an estimate cost of
£50,000 to £60,000 per annum. This estimate was based on the basic level of
overtime on a basic officer grade.

(5) How would staffing provisions work?

The Officer suggested that staffing provision could work with a shift basis or
with a focused approach on peak times such as weekends and bank holidays.
Consideration could also be given to a shared service.

(6) What would be the barriers to success?

Members heard that it would potentially be difficult to encourage staff to
undertake these later shifts.

Out of Hours work within Environmental Health was included in contractual
arrangements with employees but the need for out of hours work was limited.

It would be important to ensure that the remuneration was appropriate for the
work in order to ensure staff uptake.

(7) If you was considering an out of hours service, what criteria would you
look at? How would you benchmark this with other authorities?

The Officer informed Members that other local authorities such as Rotherham
had cut back their out of hours service due to a lack of work for them to
complete. This would suggest that the Council wouldn’t need a large service
but instead a smaller and more focussed service would be preferable.

(8) Have you any other opinions on a potential out of hours service?

Members discussed the interview at length and questioned if appropriate
provision was in place to decide whether immediate action should be taken in
relation to a complaint.

The Officer informed Members that due to the nature of the work and legal

processes, immediate action was rarely necessary or appropriate but
provision was in place should it be necessary.

4 Page 7



Members also heard that there was only a small number of out of hours call
outs. These included programmed work such as food inspections conducted
by environmental health officers.

Interview Three with the Portfolio holder for Environmental Services

(1) Is there a need for an out of hour’s service?

The Portfolio Holder informed Committee that they had been pushing for this
service as issues were often raised with them out of hours and constituents
had requested this service.

(2) How might an out of hours service work?

Members heard that the service could deal with low level anti-social behaviour
such as fly tipping and community safety issues.

(3) How would a service at NED compare with the CAN Rangers BDC?

NEDDC would not need a service as all-encompassing or detailed as the CAN
Rangers at BDC. Instead a more clear and focussed service would be
required.

(4) What would be the costs of implementation?

Members heard that part of the service could be funded through the HRA if
the service had a responsibility for anti-social behaviour. However, the Deputy
Leader commented that she would rather it focused on community safety
issues such as fly tipping, parking and planning enforcement. The source of
funding would be up for debate.

(5) How would staffing provisions work?

The Portfolio Holder suggested that a specific full time employed position was
not required. Instead existing resources could be diverted or the Council could
make use of an external provider.

(6) What would be the barriers to success?

Committee heard that a barrier to success would be setting a clear remit for
the service. A clear remit would enable appropriate training to be put in place
and prevent employees from being put at risk.

(7) If you was considering an out of hours service, what criteria would you
look at? How would you benchmark this with other authorities?

The Portfolio Holder suggested that research they had undertaken had shown
that not many other authorities currently had an out of hours service. As such
it would be prudent to start with a small trial service.

5 Page 8



CSC/
44/2
1-22

CSC/
45/2
1-22

CSC/
46/2
1-22

CSC/
47/2
1-22

CSC/
48/2
1-22

(8) Have you any other opinions on a potential out of hours service?

The Portfolio Holder told Members that it was important for this to be fully
analysed.

Members discussed the interview at length. In particular, Committee
guestioned what an out of hours service could achieve in areas such as
parking, and whether the creation of an additional role was necessary in order
for the Council to offer this service.

The Portfolio Holder suggested that the service would sit within a current team
and would undertake a more proactive role in areas such as education,
evidence gathering and community safety.

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

RESOLVED - That the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions be noted.

Scrutiny Work Programme

Committee agreed that they would like to interview officers from Rykneld
Homes and Planning Enforcement at the next meeting as part of their Scrutiny
Review.

RESOLVED - That the Work Programme be noted.

Additional Urgent Items (if any)

There were no additional urgent items.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Communities Scrutiny Committee will take place on
Friday 11 February at 1:30pm.

Venue for Next Meeting

Committee agreed that they would meet in person if possible but would wait
until a later date to make a final decision so as to keep in line with the current
situation and Government regulations and advice.

6 Page 9



Agenda Iltem 5

North East Derbyshire District Council

Cabinet
27th January 2022

Scrutiny Action Plan and Parking Strategy - Phase 1

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Communities and Communications,
Councillor A Powell

Classification: This report is public
Report By: Gill Callingham

Contact Officer:  Gill Callingham/Victoria Vernon

PURPOSE / SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to detail the response of the Lead Officer to the findings
of the Scrutiny report on Residential Parking and to agree the schemes for phase 1
of the programme for provision of estate parking.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Consider and note the response of the Lead Officer, Senior Engineer - Property
Services to the findings of the Scrutiny report on Residential Parking (Appendix
1).

2. Consider and note the preferred options for the priority sites in Appendix 5

3. Note the scheme costs in Appendix 4 and the overall increase in cost of £4,000

compared with the initial budget estimates. The overall increase of £4,000 is
still within the allocated budget

4, Note that as the full cost of the priority 1 works can be covered within 2021-
2022, some of the approximately £19,000 surplus will be used to carry out a
trial project using grass protection matting to provide parking at Adlington
Avenue, Wingerworth. It is estimated that this trial will cost between £8,000 and
£10,000 depending on supplier and specification. Any remaining funding can
be used for one of the smaller, priority 2 schemes.

Approved by the Portfolio Holder - ClIr A. Powell

Page 10



IMPLICATIONS

Finance and Risk: YesX No [J

Details:

Parking improvements will be funded through the HRA. There will be a permanent
increase in maintenance liability.

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer

Legal (including Data Protection): YesX No [
Details:

As in the report and appendices

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council

Staffing: Yes] No X
Details:

Parking improvement works to be carried out by the Council’s Term Maintenance
Contractor and managed by the Council’s Engineering Section using existing staff.

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

Page 11



DECISION INFORMATION

Decision Information

Is the decision a Key Decision? Yes
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a
significant impact on two or more District wards or
which results in income or expenditure to the Council
above the following thresholds:
BDC:
Revenue - £75,000 O Capital - £150,000 [
NEDDC:
Revenue - £100,000 O Capital - £250,000
X Please indicate which threshold applies
Is the decision subject to Call-In? Yes
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)
District Wards Significantly Affected None
Consultation: Yes
Leader / Deputy Leader X Cabinet / Executive [

Detalls:

SAMT [ Relevant Service Manager X
Members Public 0 Other

Parking working group: ClIr
Cupit, ClIr. Powell, ClIr
Gomez-Reaney, Gill
Callingham, Niall Clark.

Links to Council Ambition (BDC)/Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy
Framework including Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health

implications.

Increasing residential parking will help to enhance our residents’ quality of life.

REPORT DETAILS

1 Background (reasons for bringing the report)

1.1  Scrutiny Review: Following the Residential Parking Scrutiny Review, an action
plan has been created which details proposals of how officers intend to address
the recommendations made by the scrutiny panel, as set out at Appendix 1.

1.2  The Scrutiny review aimed to:

o Consider the provision of residential parking within the District

o Gain an understanding of what the resident parking issues are within the
District

o Identify any actions the Council could consider to resolve these resident

parking issues

Page 12



1.3

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

The recommendations following the review were that:-

o The Council consider the introduction of a facility on its own website for
residents to report bad parking within the Councils area.

o The Council investigate the feasibility of providing an increased Civil
Enforcement budget for use directly by the Council or if this was not
possible to Derbyshire County Council to undertake additional
enforcement on our behalf.

o That the effectiveness of using Grasscrete at suitable locations within the
District to offer further parking opportunities for residents be investigated

o That the Council investigate the feasibility of setting a minimum standard
of two car parking spaces per property for both Council and private
developments.

. That as part of the review into garages and garage sites consideration be
given as to whether they can provide additional residents parking.

A copy of the report produced by the Communities Scrutiny Committee is
attached at Appendix 2.

Parking Schemes: As part of the response to the Residential Parking Scrutiny
Review, North East Derbyshire District Council has been working on a more
strategic approach to providing parking throughout the District. In a Cabinet
report presented by Rykneld Homes on the 7" November 2019 (Appendix 6), it
was agreed that three pilot projects, led by RHL, would be carried out in
Holymoorside, Apperknowle and Kelstedge. Following consultation at
Holymoorside, no works were carried out due to the nature of the problems and
the consultation responses received from the public meant that the proposed
solutions were not pursued by the council. The Apperknowle scheme has just
been granted planning permission and works are being finalised with DCC prior
to construction. The public consultation for the village wide scheme at
Kelstedge was delayed due to Covid-19 and a revised date has not yet been
provided. It is anticipated that the scheme will be included in the 2022-23
programme.

Each of the priority areas, which were taken from the information gathered from
the Scrutiny review, were assessed based on a set of criteria (Appendix 3) and
options were then drawn up and costed (Appendix 4). A number of options,
including the preferred schemes are shown in Appendix 5. The pilot parking
project at Apperknowle is to be funded from this pot and will cost approximately
£120,000, an increase of £20,000 on the estimated cost due to design changes
requested by the Highway Authority to provide further parking and improve
safety on New Road.

The priority 1 locations are as follows:
1. Alton Lane/Stubben Edge Lane, Littlemoor
2. Beech Crescent (45-59), Killamarsh
3. Broom Drive/Grange Walk, Grassmoor*

Page 13



4. Dovecotes, Ashover**
5. Reynard Crescent
6. Wren Park Close

*It had been suggested that on safety grounds, Whitmore Avenue and Furniss Close
should be included in this scheme as part of a whole estate approach but the additional
cost of £130,000 for parking plus further costs for junction improvements at Whitmore
Avenue is prohibitive within current budgets. It is recommended that these be dealt
with in 2022-2023.

**The works at Dovecotes will hopefully be carried out in conjunction with garage
repairs, a new path and lighting improvements, which have been approved at Asset
Management Group.

1.8 Consultation has been carried out with Rykneld homes on the proposed options
and need for public engagement. Wider public consultation for the small, single
site schemes is being undertaken as part of the planning process.

2. Details of Proposal or Information

2.1 There is be £288,000 per year of funding from the HRA allocated to improving
parking in the District. This funding can only be used on HRA land and assets
and part of the criteria used to assess the sites is that the properties affected
must be majority NEDDC owned. The cost estimates for the priority 1 schemes
total £268,968.02. There may be ancillary lighting and replacement tree
planting works required but these would be contained within the overall
budgets.

2.2  Part of the surplus funding is proposed be used to carry out a trial project using
grass protection matting to provide parking at Adlington Avenue, Wingerworth.
It is estimated that this trial will cost between £8,000 and £10,000 depending
on supplier and specification. Care must be taken to note that this is a trial and
that it does not form a permanent access or confer a right of vehicular access
to the individual properties.

2.3 Where there are multiple options for a particular location, the preferred options
have been selected as follows:

2.3.1 Beech Crescent, Killamarsh — Largest number of spaces, lowest cost
per space, ease of installation, no third party permissions required.

2.3.2 Broom Drive, Grassmoor — Lowest cost per space, retention of more
green space.

2.3.3 Reynard Crescent (East), Renishaw — Lowest cost per space, fewer tree
removals, retention of more green space.

2.3.4 Reynard Crescent (West), Renishaw — Lower average cost per space,
retention of more green space, removal of a greater stretch of damaged
verge.

2.3.5 Wren Park Close, Ridgeway — More spaces, lower cost per space,
better protection for telegraph pole.

Page 14



3 Reasons for Recommendation

3.1 Based on the agreed criteria, and budget allowed, the recommended options
provide best value and that highest priority locations are dealt with first.

3.2  The trial at Adlington Avenue will allow the Council to assess the viability of a
cheap option which may allow us to provide parking in many more locations in
a shorter space of time. This option will not be suitable for every location.

4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1 No works carried out. This has been rejected on the grounds that parking,
including safety and access, is a particular concern in many villages and towns
within the District and is a growing problem. A budget has been allocated and
priorities agreed.

4.2 Use other ‘non-preferred’ options. This has been rejected because these

options do not represent best value in terms of cost per space and other
benefits noted above would not be realised.

DOCUMENT INFORMATION

Appendix No | Title

Residential Parking Review Action Plan V4

Residential Parking Review — Final

Car parking proposal and criteria

Scheme Costs

Scheme Option Plans

Proposed Residential Parking Strategy pilot projects...
Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a
material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below.
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) you must provide
copies of the background papers)

Click here to enter text.

OO WNBE

Page 15



9T abed

Appendix 1 - Residential Parking Review Action Plan

District to offer further
parking opportunities for
residents be investigated

groups who have
used Grasscrete or
similar for long term
parking

ltem Recommendation Action Required Who by When by Progress
1. That the Council consider Gather information Victoria 01/10/21 Complete. See notes.
the introduction of a facility | and consult with Vernon
on its own website for Communications
residents to report bad and web
parking within the Councils | development
area
2. That the Council investigate | Discuss options with | Victoria 01/06/21 Complete. See notes.
the feasibility of providing an | DCC Civil Parking Vernon/Tracy
increased Civil Enforcement | Enforcement Buckland
budget for use directly by
the Council or if this was not
possible to Derbyshire
County Council to undertake
additional enforcement on
our behalf
3. That the effectiveness of Compare prices and | Victoria 1/10/21 Ongoing. Costings requested
using Grass Crete at gather information Vernon/Tracy from NEDDC’s term
suitable locations within the | from Councils or Buckland maintenance contractor.

Trial location agreed. Grass
matting to be installed in 2021-
2022 financial year with annual
monitoring.




LT abed

4. That the Council investigate | Seek advice from Victoria 01/10/21 Complete. See notes.
the feasibility of setting a Planning. Vernon
minimum standard of two
car parking spaces per
property for both Council
and private developments
5. That as part of the review Review of garage Rykneld April 2022 The NEDDC review of its Asset
into garages and garage sites, garages and Homes and Management Strategy (in
sites consideration be given | garage plots to look ngEeEf progress) and workshops with
|

as to whether they can
provide additional residents
parking

at usage, condition
and options for
alternative use.

Councillors will set the strategic
direction in regard to the
management, maintenance,
acquisition and disposal of
garage sites.

A number of sites have already
been used to provide new
homes and poor condition
garages have been demolished

Notes
ltem 1

Officers have considered the provision of such a facility and have concluded that it is not feasible. Adding another form for bad
parking throughout the district conflicts with the abandoned vehicle form we already utilise for Environmental Health. Currently,
under the existing abandoned vehicle form, the customer is advised to report parking issues to DCC and obstructions to the police.
The form was developed in conjunction with Environmental Health, to stop issues being reported to NEDDC which are not our
responsibility and to direct members of the public to the correct authority.




8T abed

As NEDDC have no jurisdiction over parking improvements on the adopted highway, the option to report parking issues to us
suggests that we have the powers to take remedial action. In reality in the vast majority of cases we are unable to act as we are not
the enforcing Authority.

As an alternative officers at NEDDC will request that DCC forward information on any bad parking reports on a quarterly basis for
our records which will enable us to inform parking strategy.

Item 2

DCC do not have sufficient leeway in the current Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) contract to increase total hours across the
County and, increasing enforcement in the NED District would necessitate reductions in hours elsewhere. DCC were
approached and refused the option for us to fund additional hours for the district.

ltem 4
Officers have investigated the feasibility of setting a minimum of 2 car parking spaces for all new developments and have
concluded that it is not practicable.

The Council is free to design in two car parking spaces (CPS) per unit on its developments and those of Rykneld Homes if it wishes
to. Similarly, if it is selling land for development it can stipulate this as part of the land sale by way of a condition or covenant. This
would be an internal policy and not part of the planning process.

The planning department have stated that when a planning application is made for a council or private development, Planning
would use the principle of the level of parking provision being determined by the site context, its sustainability and accessibility to
public transport, employment and other local amenities. This is stipulated in the Successful Places Supplementary Planning
Document that has been adopted by four councils (NEDDC, Chesterfield, Bolsover and Bassetlaw). It is supported in planning
applications by the council as local planning authority and at appeal by Inspectors.

In practice, what this means is that where a proposal is close to local facilities or public transport connections, or if the proposal has
one bedroom units, planning could not sustain a position of two CPS per unit.

Even if we introduced a requirement of two CPS per unit in a future review of the Successful Places SPD or any replacement of it
by another SPD, it is likely to be overturned by subsequent appeals where the site context does not support the need for them. The
planning application decision making process looks at each application on its merits. Blanket policies that require the same rigid
standard for all types of development quickly come unstuck in such a process.



6T abed

Associated Works

A number of officers and Councillors have collaborated to develop a strategic plan for improving parking provision in areas of high
demand based on set criteria. These locations are those that were identified during the scrutiny process and any reported to
NEDDC or Rykneld following the review. Based on this strategy, officers have drawn up outline plans for increasing parking
provision in thirty priority locations across the district. A report will be submitted to approve the plan for improvements to the first
eight locations of those currently fitting the priority criteria.

The criteria and priorities used to inform our parking programme are as follows:

e Less than one space (either on or off street) per property. No sites with one space or more per property were considered on
this occasion.

e Properties specifically intended for vulnerable residents. This is assessed as 50% plus of the properties in the immediate area
being bungalows or ground floor flats.

e Council owned. This is where 50% plus of the properties in the immediate area are owned by NEDDC.

e Quick Wins. This is where parking could be added without the need for any third party agreements or permissions and where
utilities were not affected.

Locations meeting all four criteria are classed as priority one and will form the first tranche of schemes.



Appendix 2
NORTH EAST DERBYSHIRE
DISTRICT COUNCIL

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

RESIDENTIAL PARKING

MAY 2020

Page 20



Contents

Page
Chair’s Foreword 1
1. Recommendations 2
2. Introduction 2
3. Scope of Review 2
4. Method of Review 2
5. Evidence and Research 3
6. Key Findings 3
7. Conclusions 6

Appendix 1  Stakeholders Engaged During the Review 7

Page 21



Chair’s Foreword

| am pleased to present this report on behalf of the Communities Scrutiny Committee.
These are the findings, conclusions and recommendations from its review into
Residential Parking.

This was a full review taking in all the areas effecting parking within the district.

During the review period the Committee held a number of interviews at which it heard
from a range of Officers and stakeholders. It also consulted four Parish/Town Councils
in Clay Cross, Dronfield, Eckington and Killamarsh on their experiences of issues raised
by their residents on this topic. Representatives were also invited from the Councils to
present their submissions direct to the Committee.

The Committee heard from all stakeholders how much parking impacts on the residents
of North East Derbyshire from planning applications, bin collections, emergency
response vehicles and the use of leisure facilities.

The report contains a number of recommendations which we feel will make parking
within the District better for all residents.

| would like to thank all the members of the Scrutiny Committee for their hard work
throughout the year which has made the review an enjoyable process. | would also like

to extend a special thanks to the Scrutiny Manager Sue Veerman for her hard work and
input which has made the review possible.

Review Panel

The review panel comprised the following members:

Councillor K Tait - (Conservative) — Review Panel Chair
Councillor J Birkin - (Labour)
Councillor L Deighton - (Conservative)
Councillor M Foster - (Conservative)
Councillor O Gomez Reaney - (Conservative)
Councillor R Hall - (Conservative)
Councillor D Hancock - (Liberal Democrat)
Councillor J Lilley - (Labour)
1. Recommendations

That:

1

Page 22



11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

4.2

The Council consider the introduction of a facility on its own website for
residents to report bad parking within the Councils area.

The Council investigate the feasibility of providing an increased Civil
Enforcement budget for use directly by the Council or if this was not possible to
Derbyshire County Council to undertake additional enforcement on our behalf.

That the effectiveness of using Grasscrete at suitable locations within the
District to offer further parking opportunities for residents be investigated

That the Council investigate the feasibility of setting a minimum standard of two
car parking spaces per property for both Council and private developments.

That as part of the review into garages and garage sites consideration be given
as to whether they can provide additional residents parking.
Introduction

At its meeting on 7 June 2019 the Communities Scrutiny Committee agreed to
undertake a review of Residential Parking.

The Committee felt that it was timely to review this area following a motion at
Council on 20 May 2019.
Scope of Review
The review aimed to:
o Consider the provision of residential parking within the District

o Gain an understanding of what the resident parking issues are within the
District

o Identify any actions the Council could consider to resolve these resident
parking issues
Method of Review

The review panel met on six occasions to consider the scope of the review, key
issues they wanted to discuss and key people they wished to interview.

Evidence was gathered in a variety of ways including documentation, external
submissions and interviews.
Evidence and Research

A number of documents and evidence were provided to the review panel for
consideration. Details are provided below:

2
Page 23



6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

o Presentation by Victoria Vernon and Tracy Buckland — Senior Engineers
Presentation by Niall Clark — Director of Property and Development —
Rykneld Homes

Residential Parking Strategy

NEDDC Parking Space Creation 2009 to 2019

NEDDC Parking space Loss/Gain 2009/2019

Hard Standing Application Process

Specification for the Construction on Driveways and Hard standings on
Council Owned Property

Application Form To Construct a Hard standing and Dropped Kerb
Derbyshire County Council Guidance — Vehicular Access

Garage Site Costing and Bay Pricing Examples

Garage plots per area — September 2019

Report to Asset Management Group on Estate Green Open Space —
Vehicular Erosion Mitigation

Asset Management Group Minutes Summary

Submission by Clay Cross Parish Council

Submission by Dronfield Town Council

Submission by Eckington Parish Council

Submission by Killamarsh Parish Council

Submission by Councillor — Eckington Parish Council

Council Minute - Motion — 20" May, 2019

Agreement Relating to The Civil Enforcement of Parking In the
Administrative County of Derbyshire

Key Findings
Observations

The review panel heard evidence that issues with residential parking are a
District wide issue and different solutions are required in different areas. There
is a lack of off and on street parking space within the District. Many properties
were built before mass car ownership and without a drive or parking provision.
Estate roads can be narrow and on street parking creates access issues. The
cost of providing drives or hard standings for tenants can be a problem. There
are also difficulties sometimes on estates for refuse vehicle who have to over
run on verges if access is difficult due to parked cars. Additionally people also
park on verges and open spaces which can cause problems with the surfaces
being damaged.

Enforcement of parking can be very difficult. Civil parking enforcement is the
responsibility of Derbyshire County Council (DCC), who manage it across the
County (excluding Derby city) in partnership with the eight district and borough
Councils. This is undertaken by civil enforcement officers (CPO) who enforce a
range of restrictions. There are a limited number of CEOs. The DCC website
states that civil parking is not a reactive service and requests for enforcement
will be scheduled into routine patrols, as and when resources allow. DCC also

3
Page 24



6.1.3

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

6.3

6.3.1

manage the enforcement of on-street regulations. As a District Council we
manage off-street enforcement, such as pay and display car parks. The Panel
also discussed the powers and resources available to the Police in dealing with
residential parking issues. Members agreed that greater enforcement, traffic
calming measures and by-laws could be effective solutions.

The review panel have been updated on a new Residential Parking Strategy
that had been agreed by Cabinet on 7 November 2019. They have also been
advised that Rykneld Homes Ltd would be promoting parking provisions within
the District in order to address residents’ concerns. The panel additionally
considered further evidence of a number of trial areas in the District, which
include Holymoorside, Apperknowle and Kelstedge.

Good Practice

The review panel had reviewed the process for making an application to
construct a hard standing and a dropped kerb on a property. The specification
for this process had likewise recently been reviewed. The aim was to make the
process more user friendly. The review panel was advised that other
information and guidance to residents was also being improved and developed.
The review panel welcomed this as it provided options that residents could
consider to provide themselves with parking.

The review panel heard from the Director of Property Services and
Development at Rykneld Homes about a review that was being undertaken of
existing garages and their future use. The Review Panel were pleased to hear
this as repurposing of garages was a possible solution they had considered
and concluded would be of use to residents where appropriate.

The School Parking Partnership Initiative was raised as a positive development.
A number of schools across the country had been initiating actions to highlight
poor or irresponsible parking which could put others at risk. In the District a
school in Wingerworth have been working with their local Safer Neighbourhood
policing team, communities and road safety teams to try to stop parking and
congestion around the school. The school had also adopted an initiative where
parents can safely pull in to a designated layby and drop off their children,
where they are met and safely escorted in to the school grounds without
parents having to park up. Feedback from parents and local residents had
been positive and a reduction in parking or congestion around the school had
occurred. Several schools within the District were located amongst residential
areas so this was seen as a helpful initiative.

Areas for Improvement

The review panel invited comments from Town/Parish Councils at Clay Cross,
Dronfield, Eckington and Killamarsh on their experiences of parking issues
within their areas. Issus raised included increasing volumes of traffic,
inconsiderate and sometimes illegal parking, arguments and violence around
schools and reduction in some free parking facilities which could impact on
residential car parking. Insufficient enforcement was a significant concern

4
Page 25



6.3.2

6.3.3

raised by many contributors. One Council provided details of a Traffic
Enforcement Scheme that they had agreed, which it hoped would make the
area safer for both road users and pedestrians, especially in areas around local
schools.

As a result of this evidence the panel had considered whether the introduction
of a mechanism for reporting bad parking on the NEDDC’s website would be
useful. It was felt this would allow for vehicles to be identified and also which
areas were having particular issues so potential targeting could be considered.

Having heard of the difficulties being experienced by a number of people who
gave evidence on getting successful enforcement within their areas the panel
considered what options the Council might have to improve this situation.
Currently Derbyshire County Council carry out enforcement and the District
Council make a contribution for this. The review panel discussed whether the
Council could consider increasing the budget for Civil Enforcement as they felt
this would help residents with parking. However, it may be that the County
Council would not wish to undertake this extra work. Therefore the review
panel felt consideration should be given to any available options that NEDDC
could take to provide additional support in this area.

The review panel discussed problems with people parking on verges and
grassed areas and the covering of garden areas with hard surfaces where
residents sought to provide parking for their vehicles. This could present issues
such as surface water drainage problems. The review panel felt that it would
be worthwhile in considering the feasibility and effectiveness of using a product
like Grasscrete where appropriate. Grasscrete is a pervious reinforced
concrete structure for all types of trafficked areas that is either covered with
grass, has grass growing in the voids of the structure or has stone in the voids
of the structure

6.3.4 The review panel discussed, with the Head of Planning, the parking provision for

6.3.5

new developments and what the current standards were. They also heard from
Director of Property and Development at Rykneld Homes that they were
developing options for the creation of additional parking on estates. Additional
parking was also being created during major regeneration projects. The review
panel felt that they would like to see a minimum of two parking spaces per
house both for Council and private developments.

The review panel heard that currently garages were being demolished where
they were in poor condition and the demand was low. Additionally many
garages are no longer large enough for a lot of modern cars. This had the
potential for residents parking provision. However, it was recognised that
sometimes the location of garage sites were not suitable for this purpose.
Additionally vacant garage sites were also being used to produce new homes
with parking. The repurposing of garage sites was an area the panel felt
needed to be considered for the provision of additional resident parking.

Page 26



7. Conclusions

7.1 The review panel gathered a variety of evidence from a mix of officers at North
East Derbyshire and Rykneld Homes. They also reviewed a number of relevant
documents and policies in connection with the review. It was apparent that the
issues surrounding residential parking were varied and different solutions were
required in different areas.

7.2 However, the review panel felt that they had heard evidence on potential
solutions that may improve some of the issues being experienced by residents.
A number of recommendations were made for these solutions to be
investigated further.

Page 27



Appendix 1

Stakeholders Engaged During the Review

Steve Brunt

Tracy Buckland

Niall Clark

Richard Purcell

Victoria Vernon

Clay Cross Parish Council
Dronfield Parish Council
Eckington Parish Council

Killamarsh Parish Council

Head of Street scene

Senior Engineer

Director of Property and Development
Head of Planning

Senior Engineer

Page 28



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE]

Appendix 3 — Car parking Criteria reviewed by Cabinet informally 14" April
2021

Background

Lack of residential parking has been an issue throughout the district for a number of
years and with car ownership far exceeding the available parking on the majority of
NEDDC'’s housing estates, there are increasing issues with accessibility, unsafe
parking and access for service/lemergency vehicles. There has been a historic lack of
investment in parking and other infrastructure assets which will begin to be addressed
through this parking strategy.

As part of the redevelopment works carried out by Rykneld Homes, 272 spaces have
been delivered over the last 6 years.

A number of parking complaints were received following the recent review carried out
by the Communities Scrutiny Committee. These complaints, added to the existing list
of problem areas in the district, total 65 locations.

NEDDC and Rykneld are currently working on a pilot project aiming to provide parking
in three areas of the district. Of these three areas, two have been taken to public
consultation and one is awaiting planning permission.

All 65 problem parking locations have now been evaluated on the basis of a number
of criteria, including the number of ‘vulnerable’ properties, existing spaces per
property, number of council properties, cost, and number of new spaces. They were
then ranked 1-5 based on which criteria they fulfilled

The criteria and ranking are as follows:
1. Vulnerable, Council owned and quick win
2. Vulnerable and quick win
3. Vulnerable and council owned
4. Council owned and quick win
5. Only one criterion met

That the sum of £288,000 p.a. is allocated to parking from the HRA be used to carry
out parking works identified in priority groups 1-5.

OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] Page 29



Street/Estate

Town/Village

Budget est

Total increase in spaces

Opt 1 cost

Opt 1 spaces

01 Cost/Benefit Opt 2 cost

Opt 2 spaces

02 Cost/Benefit Opt 3 cost

Opt 3 spaces

o€ abed

Alton Lane/Stubben edge lane Littlemoor 13500 10| £20,218.61 10 £2,021.86 1 1 1 1 1
Beech Crescent 45-59 Killamarsh 12000 7 10460.57 5 2092.114 14158.91 5 2831.782| £11,793.56 7
Broom Drive Grassmoor 84000 22 54410.64 20 2720.532 64455.23 28 2301.9725| £42,608.45 22
Dovecotes Ashover 15000 10 £7,241.48 10 £724.15 1 1 1 1 1
Reynard Crescent East Renishaw 40000 19 25155.7 10 2515.57| £22,440.57 10 £2,244.06 1 1
Reynard Crescent West 8240.87 3 2746.956667| £27,626.09 12 £2,302.17 18093.68 9
Wren Park Close Ridgeway 28000 7 15885.05 6 2647.508333( £18,330.80 7 £2,618.69 1 1
£69,760.38 Whitmore - parking at end - 20 spaces
£59,188.75 Provision of 16 Drives to individual properties on Broom Drive/Grange walk.
Phase 1 totals
£20,218.61
£11,793.56
£42,608.45 £26,334.55

£7,241.48

£22,440.57

£26,334.55

£18,330.80

Apperknowle £120,000.00

Adlington Trial £10,000.00

Total: £278,968.02 Budget rem: £9,031.98



1€ abed

03 Cost/Benefit Notes
1

£1,684.79

£1,936.75

1
1
2010.408889
1

Undecided



Appendix 5 — Parking Drawings by location

Location 1 - Alton Lane/Stubben Edge Lane, Ashover.
/Alton Lane/Stubben Edge Lane, Ashover

MyMaps - NEDDC and BDC
Author: V. Vernon |
Date:  08/11/2021 |°
I ==—— 4

[
cale: = e
B 547# J L/

\ [ i Sf
\ Qj [ is]
\ / /
\ /

| Alton >
e End /e
g y: ’ /Sycamore
t . \ /- N /
\ yr / S / / Farm
— \ / / > /
\ 4 4 > / 3
[ / SN ~ ’ A B " y f
| /O 11 tep | T 2%00m e
J —_— o 1 s - o, // = T~
/ \ >~ mThe Crofl ) = é

8/ 7

. " //
Tallant House [~ 'Srle,l,‘ei; | //
— e o TCB /

T'ﬂlam \ | Ny /

| Bungalow { 7 /
Y /
P 3 ] — /

iy " [/7 -/ Littlemoor / =
- Cottage —~ A\L ]

| ] Oakwell House
[ ] L /
\ \ o 4
= \
| e | Catbells \
‘\ 2 | \

—

\ \ — \ House Q\ /
\ ‘ t D /
\ \ I\

\ \ HaystacksD 4 D Chapeisrde —— /

\ “. S ——

\ ‘\ Endale CouageE G D
|13 &

\b LD

| 4

\ [ Slonebankm Avondale

\ \ House ) o J, Y //
(]

%
| 3 Q Mage
© Crown copyright and é\ih € i ﬂh( N' l]hls eserv}d 1100019665) 2021.Contains OS dal ta b(rpwn <o) ight and datdbase right 2021

Option 1 — 10 spaces

‘Ashmore

The Stonecroft
Cottage {7~/
7

HOIneS/ !

.. North Ea.St . - Alton Lane, Littlemaor
Derbyshire - o 1
#. District Council

0 Spaces

Page 32



Location 2 - Beech Crescent, Killamarsh
MyMaps - NEDDC and BDC

Beech Crescent, Killamarsh
Author: V. Vernon
Date:  08/11/2021

%D\‘Lw

[iLHMrv{

\\ \ \ N\
\ \ \ Y A=) \‘ g 7 7
\ \ \\;, @ ) -
< t Post
= \
\@ | |\l
pnh ,m;.gms esrved (100019655) 20 Zlcm Crown copyright and database sight 2021 \\' | \

Option 1 — 5 spaces

ENRNETTNG ASRICA Dot L] ARy
DNTRIT GOLNOL PP RUMLLANE | e ™ 3 naton wide vergs on dnconed Beech Crascent, Iiiamarsh
g 1 e T o L b 155 IO T, B8 o o ssing Edglings u u t u 3 Roadsids rxzécﬁsrnmysndAx?ﬁxﬁ‘mbays
A (I LT MINFOOML: TSNS ETHIE —— L] do!s @4m). 2 x r\
Approx 74m2, 24m F dgl g H o

Option 2 — 5 spaces
Page 33



o to pricecitien or ol procesdings.
yuhire Diairick Coundll

[Ber tha Crdnanes Sy mepng vi pamiften]
Jar Cofgrader of Her Mojsyn Simtenery G Craam
oy uthirked repredusiion nivngos Croam

Ja

[Marth Eget

Lioenca He. | Herigent]

Beecn Crascant, Kitamarsh
Irrside Curve & x 6x2.5m bays

7T —

Option 3 — 7 spaces.

Preferred option

. \\
™
8 metres from \\
gerage to \\ .,
koys . &
N \\ yd eb'
2.5x5m bays \\ N o H
N S
. b
N S A
. &
\ \
rLote to ke instefled to “flats (CL
| approx 1-15mejérsiwice ™, OQQ |
™ J L
\ 4
N NS
S &
N NS @ R —
D%
o
A4 &
& \‘f\ & Currently No
Access OFF
Ny Larage Site
&\\ Y B e
[~ e o
"‘;’_ North East e 87.5m2 ares, 7 bays ot 25x5 plus Beech Crescent, Killamarsh e
Derbyshi re ,:,: ;::::\riL:\gPilLrAE"sang:"LV\:Ta.\nt\en of Garage Site 7 x 2.5x5m bays
District Council

Page 34



Location 3 Broom Drive, Grassmoor
MyMaps - NEDDC and BDC

Author: V. Vernon
08/11/2021

Broom Drive, Grassmoor
Date:

\ \
— \
{ —— (/>
A L -\
\ = e
| U | a
\ S =
\ | = —
\ § (
\ Y
\ \ |
\
\ 5
o wn copyrig ind database right. Al rights reserved (100019665) 2021.Contains OS data © Crown copyright and database right 2021

Option 1 — 20 spaces

e .
' T s
[P—_—
North East e W peyuve - Initial Arch Parking Proposal —
Derbyshire TR ot TR e fola vt ‘Drive, Grassmoor.
ww#  District Council 20 Spaces

Page 35



Option 2 — 28 spaces

S

% North E e el = —
% Dgrrlgysh?: e Tl I iy s -ty el
w5 District Council Broom Drive, Grassmoor. 28 Spaces
Option 3 — 22 spaces. Preferred option.

% North East
Derbyshire
"

W District Council

Page 36



Location 4 - Dovecotes, Ashover

Dovecotes, Ashover

MyMaps - NEDDC and BDC

Author: V. Vernon
Date: 08/11/2021

KLY
‘VQ Q y /

7
&

< / Tree Jiomess
/A~ Farm~ <
R D

[
“\Pear Tree
4 // ‘Cottage

\
\ ’/

Chantry House /

|

o
7 77 ) v
// Cottage / / \ \ e | )
(AT N\ An /
7 \ 2 Limetree Cottage /
/A N

@i; ;:x‘ \% Play area
{xéé@/y

N ) e S0 Y,
&~/ — . /
/o Crofn hpyright ahd datbase right. All rights reserved (100019655} 2021 Coatins 05 datd © Crown cogyriaht and database right 2021

A

e 4 77\,7
: /
Dovecotes A

Y
J // =
{ B#\ ///'/\ &\ Health Centre
% ¢ 7 A
Z, /A
oy P~/
Y
O O

X/

&\:V/Q

Sports Ground

Tennis
Court

Option 1 — 10 spaces. Preferred opt

ion

WINGERWORTH,
TEL: Chestertod (01268 231111

North East
Derbyshire
District Council

Page 37



Location 5 — Reynard Crescent
MyMaps - NEDDC and BDC

Author: V. Vernon |
| 0 20

Date: 08/11/2021 Scale: 11250
Methodis Bl

. Church

Reynard Crescent, Renishaw

R / /

© Crown copyright and database right. Al rights reserved (100019665) 2021 Contains OS data c‘smwn ﬂynom and dafavase/s rwh( z‘un /

Option 1 (East) — 10 spaces.

NT

Service
Cover

[ Tewestzoh w::l.-

>

the Cortialer of Her Wajesty
infingen Crom capioht

e o T Grrocs oy o Wi i porn
E ] f;wﬂ WETE

of
o Unautrorined_ rprodicy

it vt Dbyt it Gl e o 100013589
North East encnERRNG ERRGES [T Ty e —
or asi s counien oeres sors i Lane. | o - w25 x & metre
Derbyshire e e s bays B54me areq, Reynard Crescent, Renishaw
PR T340 17648 GO, (01396222757 | samn wrs
District Council 72m perineter East Corner 10 x 6x2.5m Bays

Page 38



Option 2 (East) — 10 spaces. Preferred option.

\/

%@ North East = ; et R :
K Derbyshire o eynard Crescent, Renishaw
SN, District Council = A East Array 5+5 6.5x2.5m bays

Option 3 (West) — 3 spaces. Preferred option alongside option 5.

' P v = =
£ North East o 49m2, 2B meter perimeter .
Derbyshire = trees to remove.  |Reynard Crescent, Renishaw
“w#.  District Council 3 metre wide verge. 3 . o4

Option 4 (West) — 12 Spaces.

Page 39



e Grewn copyright

af to prose
10301365

Sauad pon ] Grivance™~Sucyey mappig wilh T parmiaenl
i of e MisTs s terary OFch B Cromn
corn ndmonaed 1epiocs

o oy e

ert Eont e B
North East e s N e vy
Derbyshire owm sl E62 2. BhSw perineter Reynard Crescent, Renishaw
District Council = e West Comer 12 x 6.5x2.5 bays

Option 5 (West)

— 9 spaces. Preferred option alongside option 3.

\/

o~

§ 0]

rze Tarvey mapphg with he permison
liee Majockys Ehatimary Cfich © Crown
dreproch ot

e
edr

e
ool o ..
vt Eust Darbbie Dvies Goundi - Livarce No. 10301755
North East Conw SMENRTE e i
orth Eas momie [omm
Derbyshire e e osat Reynard Crescent, Renishaw
District Council R b West 9 x 6.5x2.5 Bays ARRAY

Page 40



Location 6 — Wren Park Close, Ridgeway

MyMaps - NEDDC and BDC

\Wren Park Close, Ridgeway
Author: V. Vernon |
]
Date:  08/11/2021 | scue 2250
U | N\
/\/ Farm/ | |~ E = )
= \ ’//
| .
\ '//‘
\ b
| Milfield N [
| dilihel | /
Im— 8 ] | /
| — /
iDSunnyswde /'
/
7
/
/
——=-= /
. /
— /
Nl //
i
92
S / He
. / =
f / = /
/ = 7 [ S /
/ ) / e /
/ / / —— /
‘D ‘ 1 3 [ o T
]| e ﬂ )i i
1© EIDWH copyright and database right. All rights reserv;dﬁmmw“ﬂ 7021.Cnﬂli|"\s 0S data © Crown copyright and database right 2021 /

Option 1 — 6 spaces

Surface
Water

Exige,
St
Pemgg, ' wall +o

oy ropping =T T patt bl
‘athonery e
G

North Sast oo o Kioaway, Shofteld, S12 3XT
i TEL: Ghestartiad (01268) 231111 Dale il idgeway, Sheffield,
352‘33’52;2?1 B s | B e ioH s BAYS)
4

Page 41



Option 2 — 7 spaces. Preferred option
I L / T
— / —
/
/

Surface
_wWoter —
o —

—

7o —
T T
{ ) EMOVE )

enamsEnG serces T =T me Park
e e T M ANE. | pmen = 198 m2, 62m perimeter,52m Wre, Close
e e o e oF cdginge needed (ot Ridgeway, Sheffield, S12 3XT
A (T3S 7D MINICOE (@124 e | B i along existing wall 7 bays

Page 42



Appendix 6

North East Derbyshire District Council

Cabinet

7t November 2019

Proposed Residential Parking Strategy
Pilot parking projects in Holymoorside, Apperknowle and Ashover.

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environment

This report is public

Purpose of the Report

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

To consider the adoption of a new Residential Parking Strategy (Appendix 1) to
improve the parking provision in North East Derbyshire.

To consider and seek approval to progress three pilot parking projects in the priority
areas of Holymoorside, Apperknowle and Ashover.

Report Details

Each part of the District has different parking needs, requiring solutions unique to the
location. The proposed strategy sets out a number of ways to deliver more parking.
This is likely to be a mix of driveways on individual houses and shared parking areas.

The strategy outlines a new approach to proactively support customers through
technical advice and an easy to use application process so they can install their
parking through an appropriately skilled person/contractor.

The strategy also sets out an option appraisal process (Appendix 2) to review old
outdated garage/plots sites which have the potential to provide a funding source.

Three pilot projects have been identified in priority areas of Holymoorside,
Apperknowle and Ashover.

a. Holymoorside - There is a significant parking problem in Holymoorside,
specifically in the area close to the local primary school and in the neighbouring
Cul-de-sac Pinfold Close. Following a meeting with the local Ward member it was
agreed that Rykneld Homes Ltd (RHL) would undertake an initial survey of the
area with a view to providing additional parking. This can be achieved by making
use of the existing garage site and grassed open spaces. A member of staff from
the Council’'s Engineering team is working with RHL to provide options after
surveying utilities, services and the position of trees in the area. Following formal
approval to proceed, RHL will commence consultation with local residents and

Page 43



2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

discuss design options with the local ward member in the first instance, with a
further report to Cabinet.

b. Apperknowle — This is a further priority area where there is a lack of parking for
local residents. The ward member for Apperknowle asked RHL representatives to
meet with the local community to respond to complaints about the lack of parking
in the area. This meeting also provided an opportunity to discuss future parking
solutions for the area. Following positive feedback, it was proposed that a further
meeting be held in January 2020 to provide some parking options based on what
is feasible in the location. Following approval to progress this project, RHL and
the engineering team will undertake a survey and develop options for the area.

c. Kelstedge, — There have been long standing issues and complaints about parking
in a specific area of Westedge Close, Kelstedge. Representatives from NEDDC
and RHL have been invited to numerous Parish and County meetings to respond
to complaints from residents and local ward members. There is a former garage
site that could be used for housing development, but which has yet to be
investigated. This could generate funding for NEDDC which could be used to
provide some parking solutions in both Kelstedge and in the village of Ashover.
An initial survey was undertaken recently to facilitate an options appraisal for the
site. Formal approval is now sought to progress this project.

Conclusions and Reasons for Recommendation

The three areas proposed as priorities are areas that have had numerous complaints
and longstanding issues with lack of parking. In Holymoorside there are also health
and safety concerns relating to the lack of parking near the Primary school on a busy
main road.

Lack of parking facility has been identified as the number one issue identified in
annual customer satisfaction surveys.

The numbers of cars congesting estate roads continues to increase causing access
problems and damage to grass verges and estate aesthetics.

Current parking provision for through garage sites is outdated, not fit for purpose due
to increase in car size and located away from customers’ homes. This has led to a
decline in the number of people on waiting list and an increase in vacant garages and
garage plots.

The current position is not sustainable in the long term.
A proposed review of the old outdated garage/garage plot sites has the potential to
deliver funding for new parking provision and deliver brownfield development sites for

new housing.

All proposals will be seen by the Asset Management Group prior to consideration for
approval.

Page 44



3

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.1.1

5.2

5.2.1

5.3

5.3.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

Consultation and Equality Impact

A programme of resident consultation will be undertaken before any parking solutions
are finalised.

The review of garage sites would consider usage and potential options for alternative
local parking provision. Where appropriate this will include consultation with local
users and could consider re-provision for displaced garage site tenants. Owner
Occupiers using garage sites for access to their properties (potential easements by
prescription) would be considered as part of this process.

There are no equality impacts arising from this proposal.

Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

Do nothing — this option is not recommended due to the increasing number of cars
on estates and the declining demand and increasing investment required in existing
garage parking provision.

Invest in garage sites — this is not recommended due to the change in customer
expectations, people prefer to park their cars next to their home.

Increase rent payments to pay for new parking facilities to each individual home. This

is not recommended because the repayment period is economically prohibitive and
not economically viable for customers on low incomes.

Implications

Finance and Risk Implications

The proposed option appraisal process will identify potential funding opportunities to
cross subsidise the delivery of new parking provision.

Legal Implications including Data Protection

There are no legal or Data Protection implications arising from this proposal.

Human Resources Implications

There are no Human Resource Implication arising from this proposal.

Recommendations

Cabinet considers and agrees the proposed new Residential Parking Strategy.

Cabinet agrees to give delegated power to the Chief Executive Officer in consultation
with the Leader and the Portfolio Holder to approve the three pilot projects in
Holymoorside, Apperknowle and Ashover once full details are known.

Cabinet refers the delegation to Standards Committee for inclusion in the Council’s
Constitution as a permanent delegation.

3
Page 45



7

8

Decision Information

Is the decision a Key Decision?
A Key Decision is an executive decision
which has a significant impact on two or more
District wards or which results in income or
expenditure to the Council above the
following thresholds:
BDC: Revenue - £75,000 O

Capital - £150,000 0O
NEDDC: Revenue - £100,000 O

Capital - £250,000 0O

M Please indicate which threshold applies

No. The proposal applies to all
District Wards but the effect of this
report is not significant, so it is not
a key decision.

Is the decision subject to Call-In? No
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been | Yes
informed

District Wards Affected All

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or
Policy Framework

Our Residents
e Help Communities address
local issues and concerns
e Improving housing stock
Our Services
e Creating a safe district in
which to live and work

Document Information

Appendix No | Title
1 Residential Parking Strategy
2 Appraisal Process

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied
on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the
section below. If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC)
you must provide copies of the background papers)

Report Author

Contact Number

Marcus Bishop — Head of Business Development

01246 217 892

Report Reference —

Page 46




L abed

COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22

FRIDAY at 1:30 pm

Chair: Cllr Kevin Tait Vice Chair: Cllr Barry Lewis
MEETING AGENDA SCRUTINY | WHAT IT WILL COVER UPDATE/COMMENTS
DATE ITEM ACTIVITY
2"d July, 2021 Remit of the Briefing on Scrutiny : Sue Veerman -Overview and
Committee Scrutiny Manager/Committee
- setting the scene Members
- the terms of reference for the
Committee
- How the Committee operates, ways
of working— Discussion
Draft Work To discuss items for the draft work Committee Members/ Sue Veerman
Programme programme for the year and any - Overview and Scrutiny Manager
suggested items for inclusion
Selection of Review To consider the Committees topic for a | Committee Members >>
Scrutiny Review Scrutiny review
Topic (@
Consider what we want to look at E
Consider stakeholders who we want to g'
see
—
(U

J W



8t abed

Forward Plan of | Consultee, To consider the Forward Plan of Sue Veerman- Overview and

Executive monitor and Executive Decisions Scrutiny Manager

Decisions challenge
3'd September, Scrutiny Review | Review Scene setting and Scoping for the Lead Officers — Tommy Rush
2021 2021/22 Scrutiny Review accepted and Matt Liddy - accepted

Housing Update | Monitor and To consider recent developments Lee Pepper - accepted

challenge

Forward Plan of | Monitor and To consider the Forward Plan of Sue Veerman

Executive challenge Executive Decisions Overview and Scrutiny Manager

Decisions

Scrutiny Work Monitor and To consider the Committees’ work Sue Veerman

Programme challenge programme Overview and Scrutiny Manager
12 November, Communications | Monitor and To consider a presentation from the Amar Bashir - accepted
2021 Provision for challenge officer responsible for equalities

people with

disabilities

Scrutiny Review | Review Approval of Project Plan and Timetable | Committee

Consideration of any Documentation

Forward Plan of | Monitor and To consider the Forward Plan of | Sue Veerman - Overview and

Executive challenge Executive Decisions Scrutiny Manager

Decisions

Scrutiny Work Consultee, To consider the Committees’ work | Sue Veerman -Overview and

Programme monitor and programme Scrutiny Manager

challenge




61 abed

10t December, Scrutiny Review | Review Interviews Committee
2021 e Steve Brunt - Head of
Streetscene 13:30
e Matt Finn & Samantha Bentley -
Environmental Health Officers
14:00
Scrutiny Review | Review Consideration of any documentation
Forward Plan of | Monitor and | e To consider the Forward Plan of Overview and Scrutiny Manager
Executive challenge Executive Decisions
Decisions
Scrutiny Work Consultee, e To consider the Committees’ work Overview and Scrutiny Manager
Programme monitor and programme
challenge




11t February, 2022 Scrutiny Review — Review Interviews
potential ‘out of hours’ e Heather Summer & Lucy Gebbie (Rykneld
service Homes) — 1.30
e Julian Hawley (Planning Enforcement) —
2.00
Previous Scrutiny Review e To consider progress against the Action Gill Callingham — Director of
Review Plan — Scrutiny Review into Residential Growth
Parking
Forward Plan of Consultee, e To consider the Forward Plan of Executive | Overview and Scrutiny
Executive Decisions monitor and Decisions Manager
challenge
Scrutiny Work Consultee, e To consider the Committee’s Work Overview and Scrutiny
Programme monitor and Programme Manager
challenge
1st April, 2022 Health Partnership Consultee, e To consider progress on the Healthy North | Tris Burdett - Partnership
Working monitor and East Derbyshire Approach Officer
challenge accepted
Scrutiny Review — Review e Triangulation of evidence - Scrutiny | Members
potential ‘out of hours’ Review
service
Forward Plan of Consultee, e To consider the Forward Plan of Overview and Scrutiny
Executive Decisions monitor and Executive Decisions Manager
challenge

05 abed




Scrutiny Work Consultee, e To consider whether the Committees’ work | Overview and Scrutiny
Programme monitor and programme has been completed at year Manager
challenge end
20" May, 2022 Community Safety Monitor and To review the work of the Partnership Faye Green - Community
Partnership challenge Partnership Manager -
accepted
Street scene monitor and e To consider the services performance Steve Brunt, HOS - Street
challenge including recycling scene
Previous Scrutiny Review e To consider progress against the action
Review plan — Obesity in younger residents
Draft Scrutiny Review Review e To agree the draft report for Scrutiny Committee Members
report Review
Monitoring of O&S Monitor e To monitor the implementation of previous | Sue Veerman - Overview and
recommendations committee and review recommendations Scrutiny Manager
Forward Plan of Consultee, e To consider the Forward Plan of Sue Veerman - Overview and
Executive Decisions monitor and Executive Decisions Scrutiny Manager
challenge
Scrutiny Work Consultee, e To consider the Committee’s Work Sue Veerman - Overview and
Programme monitor and Programme Scrutiny Manager
challenge

TG abed




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Last Meeting
	5 Previous Scrutiny Review
	Appendix 1 - Residential Parking Review Action Plan
	Appendix 2 - Residential Parking Review - Final
	Appendix 3 - Car parking proposal and criteria
	Appendix 4 - Scheme costs
	Appendix 5 - Scheme option plans
	Appendix 6 - Proposed Residential Parking Strategy pilot projects

	7 Scrutiny Work Programme

